# FILED Court of Appeals Division III State of Washington 5/20/2022 8:00 AM

FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
5/20/2022
BY ERIN L. LENNON
CLERK

Supreme Court No. \_\_100945-3

COA No. 37889-6-III

#### SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

CITY OF PROSSER,

Respondent,

v.

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 839; KENNETH JAMES LATSCH, Appellants.

PETITION FOR REVIEW

David W. Ballew WSBA #17961 Attorney for Appellant Teamsters Local 839

REID, MCCARTHY, BALLEW & LEAHY, LLP 100 W. Harrison Street, Suite N300 Seattle, WA 98119 (206) 285-3610

#

#### A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Teamsters Union Local 839 asks this court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision terminating review designated in Part B of this petition.

#### B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

Petitioner seeks review of the decision of Division III of the Washington State Court of Appeals in *City of Prosser v Teamsters Union Local 839; Kenneth James Latsch*, No. 37889-6-III filed on April 19, 2022 (hereafter "Decision".) A copy of the Decision is in the Appendix. Petitioner did not file a motion for reconsideration.

#### C. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

If this Court grants review, does the arbitrator's conclusion that the city did not prove sexual harassment in violation of Washington's Law Against Discrimination preclude a determination that the award violates the public policy evinced

by Washington's Law Against Discrimination and the equal protection guarantees of the federal and state constitutions?

#### D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Teamsters Local 839 ("Union") represents the police officers and sergeants employed by the City of Prosser ("City"). CP 219. Under the parties collective bargaining agreement ("CBA"), employees can only be discharged for cause. CP 246-247. The CBA also contains a grievance procedure which culminates in arbitration which the parties agreed "shall be final and binding upon the aggrieved employee, Union and Employer." CP 245.

#### The Grievance

Prosser terminated Officer Shane Hellyer on March 29, 2018 alleging that he had sexually assaulted Alexandra Hart while she was in his custody. CP 224. Prosser also added allegations of procedural violations based on historical practices and alleged he had been having improper conversations with Theresa Gannon and Brandi Gannon on the job for years. CP

224. The Union filed a grievance under the provisions of a collective bargaining agreement between the City and the Union.

CP 224.

The Arbitrator's Award

Arbitrator Kenneth Latsch was selected to decide the

dispute. CP 217. Following a hearing and briefing, the arbitrator

entered his award sustaining the union's grievance on April 16,

2019, and ordering the City of Prosser to reinstate Hellyer to his

position as a patrol officer with all back pay and restoration of

other benefits. CP 233.

**The First Superior Court Order** 

The City filed an Application for Writ of Certiorari in the

Benton County Superior Court contending that the arbitrator

violated an explicit, well defined and dominate public policy by

reinstating Hellyer to his position as a Prosser police officer

without determining that the allegation of sexual harassment did

not occur. CP 2.

PETITION FOR REVIEW COA No. 37889-6-III

3

The trial court entered an Order Remanding Case to Labor Arbitrator for written clarification of whether he found that Prosser proved that Hellyer sexually harassed the women as proscribed by Washington law. CP 288 – 289.

#### The Arbitrator's Award on Remand

In his Award on Remand, the arbitrator concluded that the Employer's lack of a comprehensive investigation did not support a finding of sexual harassment. Instead, according to the arbitrator, the city had a fixed goal at the beginning of the investigation and fit facts to support the conclusion that it wanted to happen. CP 389 - 390.

Following the arbitrator's specific finding that the City had not proven sexual harassment, the City returned to Superior Court seeking to vacate the arbitrator's award.

# **The Second Superior Court Order**

The trial court held that the arbitrator's award violated the public policy "to be free from discrimination" and vacated the award. CP 416.

#### **Court of Appeals, Division III**

The Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court's order vacating the arbitration awards concluding that the arbitrator's legal reasoning violated the express, well defined, and dominant policies evinced by Washington's Law Against Discrimination and the equal protection guarantees of the federal and state constitutions.

#### E. ARGUMENT

# The Decision of Division III Conflicts with Decisions of this Court

Under RAP 13.4 (b)(1), a petition for review may be accepted if the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court.

As instructed by this Court, judicial review of arbitration awards is extremely limited. *Clark County Pub. Util. Dist. No. 1 v. Int'l Bhd. of Elec. Workers, Local 125*, 150 Wn.2d 237, 246 (2003). The court does not pass on the merits of the dispute; the arbitrator is the final judge of both the facts and the law, and no

review will lie for a mistake in either. *Clark County*, 150 Wn.2d at 245. In particular, review is only of the arbitrator's award and not the underlying conduct. *Int'l Union of Operating Eng'rs*, *AFL-CIO*, *Local 286 v. Port of Seattle*, 176 Wn.2d 712, 716 (2013).

As set forth by the Court in *Clark County*, arbitrators "do not act as junior varsity trial courts where subsequent appellate review is readily available to the losing party. Rather, reviewing courts ask only if the arbitrator's award 'draws its essence from the collective bargaining agreement." (quoting *United Steelworkers of America*, 363 U.S. 593, 597 (1960); *Richmond, F. & P. R.R. v. Transp. Communications Int'l Union*, 973 F.2d 276, 282-83 (4th Cir. 1992) ("Nothing would be more destructive to arbitration than the perception that its finality depended upon the particular perspectives of the judges who review the award."). *Clark County*, 150 Wn.2d at 246.

Here, Division III stated that upon remand the arbitrator accepted the Department's findings of the conduct that the

complaining businesswomen viewed as sexual harassment.

Decision at pg. 10. That is not accurate. The arbitrator noted what the City alleged that its investigation uncovered. CP 387 - 388.

It then analyzed the public policy question based on its determination that the arbitrator had found that the conduct was alleged had actually happened. Yet, upon remand, the arbitrator specifically found that the city's investigation **did not** support a finding of sexual harassment. Instead, as stated by the arbitrator:

[T]he Employer did not prove that Mr. Hellyer had committed sexual harassment in its investigation of his conduct.

CP 387.

Continuing, the arbitrator stated:

In this case, I cannot find that the Employer's investigation produced the kind of evidence that would support a finding of sexual harassment.

CP 389.

The reason for this determination, as explained by the arbitrator, was that the city had a fixed goal at the beginning of

the investigation and fit facts to support the conclusion that it wanted to happen. CP 389 - 390.

Despite the arbitrator's specific finding that the investigation was insufficient to prove sexual harassment, Division III reviewed the underlying investigation itself to test the arbitrator's determination. In its decision, Division III repeatedly referenced the statements made in that underlying investigation to undercut determination that the city failed to support a finding of sexual harassment. For example, the court stated:

The arbitrator found this to be neutralized by "different information" provided by Mr. Hellyer: that the lingerie he showed Teresa was concealed carry holsters. CP at 388. **But Teresa had told investigators** the same thing; she told them that Officer Hellyer showed her pictures of women in intimate apparel as suggestions after she obtained her concealed weapon permit. She still viewed the pictures as 'sexy concealed carry clothing that were inappropriate.' CP at 122.

Decision at pg. 19. (emphasis added.)<sup>1</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The citation to CP 122 is to the investigation which the arbitrator specifically discredited.

Next, in this regard, the court stated:

The arbitrator found this [allegation attributed to Schutt] to be neutralized by the fact that Ms. Schutt no longer lived in Prosser and said her memory of the events was not good. What Ms. Schutt said, as recounted in the Department's internal investigation report, was that "her memory of what exactly was said has been forgotten," but "pretty much anything he said was inappropriate as everything seemed to have a sexual innuendo." CP at 120.

Decision at pg. 20. (emphasis added.)<sup>2</sup>

Division III's decision, in which it independently delved into the discredited investigation as a basis for its holding, conflicts with this Court's directive that review is only of the arbitrator's award and not the underlying conduct. *Int'l Union of Operating Eng'rs, AFL-CIO, Local 286 v. Port of Seattle,* 176 Wn.2d 712, 716 (2013). Accordingly, review is appropriate under RAP 13.4(b)(1) as even though the underlying decision is

<sup>2</sup> The citation to CP 120 is also to the investigation which the arbitrator specifically discredited.

\_

unpublished, Division III's analysis could lead to lower court

confusion.

F. CONCLUSION

The underlying decision is the only known decision in

which an appellate court in Washington has concluded that an

arbitrator's award which specifically found that the employer had

failed to prove its allegations, was determined to violate public

policy. For the reasons addressed herein, Teamsters Local 839

requests that the Court grant review of the Court of Appeals

decision below. This document contains 1438 words, excluding

the parts of the document exempted from the word count by RAP

18.17.