FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 6/23/2022 10:11 AM BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK

Supreme Court No.____

Court of Appeals Division III No. 378896-6-III

THE SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 839 AND KENNETH JAMES LATSCH,

Appellants

v.

CITY OF PROSSER,

Respondent

RESPONDENT CITY OF PROSSER'S RESPONSE TO APPELANT'S MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME AND RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Lance King, WSBA No. 30473 Attorney for Respondent City of Prosser 21817 14th Avenue South Des Moines, WA 98198 Phone: (206) 375-9644 Email: <u>lking@lancekinglaw.com</u>

I.	IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT	
II.	COUNTERSTATEMENT OF ISSUES1	
III.	COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE CASE1	
IV.	ARGUMENT5	
	A. The Court Should Deny Local 839's Motion for Extension	
	B. The Court of Appeals Correctly Applied Precedential Decisions	
V.	CONCLUSION	

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Cases

Clark County Pub. Util. Dist. No. 1 v. Int'l Bhd. of Elec. Workers. Local 125, 150 Wash.2d 237 (Wash. 2003)10		
International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 286 v. Vivenzio, 176 Wn.2d 712 (Wash. 2013)10		
Kitsap County Sheriff's Deputy Guild v. Kitsap County, 167 Wn.2d. 428, (Wash. 2009)11		
Reichelt v. Raymark Indus, 52 Wn. App. 763 (1988)6		
Scannell v. State, 128 Wn.2d 829, 834-35 (1996)7		
Shumway v. Payne, 136 Wn.2d 383, 395 (1998)6		
<u>State v, Beckman</u> 102 Wn. App. 687 (2000)		
Other Authorities		
Rules of Appellate Procedure 1.26		
Rule of Appellate Procedure 13.4		

I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

The Respondent is the City of Prosser.

II. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Whether there were "extraordinary circumstances" that prevented the Appellant, Teamsters Local 839, to file its Petition for Review within the time requirements of RAP 13.4(a) and did Teamsters Local 839 exercise reasonable diligence in filing the petition?

 Did the Court of Appeals correctly apply this Court's decisions in <u>Clark County Pub. Util. Dist. No. 1 v. Int'l Bhd. of</u> <u>Elec. Workers, Local 125</u>, 150 Wash.2d 237, 245 (Wash. 2003), <u>International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 286 v. Vivenzio</u> 176 Wn.2d 712, 721 (Wash. 2013) and <u>Kitsap County Sheriff's</u> <u>Deputy Guild v. Kitsap County</u>, 167 Wn.2d. 428, 436 (Wash. 2009)?

III. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE CASE

On March 28, 2018, the Respondent, City of Prosser ("Prosser") terminated police officer Shane Hellyer ("Hellyer") for numerous acts of serious misconduct including sexually assaulting a female who was handcuffed in the back of his patrol car and sexually harassing three other women while he was on duty in Prosser. (CP 127, 129, 130). Hellyer's harassment towards the women included: telling the women about his sex life; telling the women about shopping at an erotic store; offering to buy women sexual lubricant and sending them pictures of the sexual lubricant; showing women pictures of scantily clad women he had downloaded on his department issued laptop computer; and, commenting in a salacious manner about clothing the women were wearing. (CP 118-122)

On April 7, 2018, Teamsters Union Local 839 ("Local 839") filed a grievance on Hellyer's behalf arguing there was not just cause for his termination. The parties went to arbitration over Prosser's decision to terminate Hellyer and Arbitrator Kenneth Latsch ("Arbitrator") ultimately ruled there was not just cause to terminate Hellyer and ordered Prosser to reinstate him back to his position as police officer with full backpay. (CP 74)

The Arbitrator's Award failed to address the sexual harassment complaints by the three women, because the Arbitrator did not believe Hellyer's harassment of the women warranted the discipline of termination:

> "In deciding whether [termination] was appropriate, I must focus on the [sexual assault]. If that incident should not lead to the discipline of discharge, <u>I cannot find that the other events</u> <u>discovered during the investigation [including sexual harassment]</u> <u>should rise to that level.</u>" (Emphasis, added.) (CP 72)

On June 3, 2019, Prosser filed a Writ of Certiorari in Benton County Superior Court to vacate the Arbitrator's Award. (CP 1) Prosser argued the Award violated the State of Washington's explicit, welldefined and dominate public policy to prevent and end sexual harassment by reinstating Hellyer without making a finding on whether or not he sexually harassed the three women. (CP 189, 190) Prosser also argued the Award violated the explicit well-defined and dominate public policy to prevent and end sexual harassment by finding that Hellyer's above-cited harassment of the three women did not "rise to [the] level" of a terminable offense. (CP 190)

On November 22, 2019, Benton County Superior Court Judge Samuel Swanberg ("Judge Swanberg") order the case remanded back to the Arbitrator and directed him to provide a written clarification whether "Hellyer sexually harassed Theresa Gannon, Brandi Gannon and/or Kelli Schutt..." (CP 288, 289) Judge Swanberg further directed the Arbitrator to explain "...why it was not necessary to end discrimination and prevent future discrimination." (CP 289.)

On February 3, 2020, the Arbitrator responded to the court ordered clarification and found Hellyer's conduct toward the three women did not warrant discipline as it was merely "the type of course conversation that may take place in the workplace." (CP 389)

Judge Swanberg vacated the Award, finding the Arbitrator violated Washington's explicit, well-defined and dominate public policy to end and prevent sexual harassment by ruling Hellyer's conduct towards the women was "the type of course conversation that may take place in the workplace." (CP 389) In his order vacating the Award, Judge Swanberg wrote:

"While not agreeing with them all, the Court accepts the findings and conclusions made by the arbitrator, with the exception that the founded interactions of Officer Hellyer with Mses T. Gannon, B. Gannon and Schutts did not constitute sexual harassment under the WLAD because it was the "type of coarse conversation that may take place in the workplace"...this conclusion violates the clear public policy of the WLAD to ensure the civil right "...to be free from discrimination" and must therefore be reversed to preserve the legislative protection afforded the citizens of the State of Washington." (CP 416)

On December 3, 2020, Teamsters Local 839 appealed Judge Swanberg's decision, claiming the court erred by remanding the matter back to Arbitrator Latsch for clarification and erred by vacating the Award. (CP 417, 418) On April 19, 2022, the Court of Appeals unanimously affirmed the superior court's decision, finding the Arbitrator's Award violated Washington's public policy against sexual harassment.

On May 19, 2022, at 5:26 pm, Local 839 filed a Petition for Review to the Washington Supreme Court ("Court"). On May 20, 2022, Erin L. Lennon, Supreme Court clerk sent a letter to the attorneys for Local 839 and Prosser informing Local 839 that it did not file its petition for review timely. (Appendix A)

On May 25, 2022, Local 839 filed a Motion for Extension of Time to File Petition ("Motion for Extension"). In its motion, Local 839 stated it failed to file the petition timely because; 1) An employee for the law firm representing Local 839 had quit approximately two months before the Petition for Review was due to be filed with the Court; 2) An employee for the firm went on sick leave two days prior to the date the Petition for Review was due to be filed with the Court; and, 3) The law firm's log-in password to E-file the Petition for Review had expired and by the time they reset the password and submitted their petition they missed the deadline for filing the petition.

As will be discussed in detail in Section IV of this response, Local 839 clearly failed to exercise reasonable diligence in filing its Petition for Review and its excuses for failing to timely file the petition are not based on extraordinary circumstances.

IV. ARGUMENT

The Court should deny reviewing Local 839's Petition for Review for two reasons. First, Local 839 did not exercise reasonable diligence when it failed to file its Petition for Review within RAP 13(4)(a)'s strict deadline and proffered no "extraordinary circumstances" why it failed to file the petition timely. Second, the Washington State Court of Appeals Division III's decision correctly applied stare decisis and followed this Court's previous rulings in affirming Benton County Superior Court's ruling that the arbitration award violated Washington's explicit, welldefined and dominate public policy to prevent and end sexual harassment in the workplace.

 A. The Court Should Deny Local 839's Motion for Extension. Local 839's Motion for Extension should be denied as there were
no extraordinary circumstances which prevented it from filing its Petition
for Review timely. Furthermore, the motion should be denied as Local
839 failed to exercise reasonable diligence in filing the petition.

1. No extraordinary circumstances exist

As Local 839 points out in its Motion for Extension, RAP 1.2(a) states that the Rules of Appellate Procedure will be "liberally interpreted to promote justice and facilitate the decision of cases on the merits." However, there are exceptions to the "liberally interpreted" standard. RAP 18.8(b), which is specifically referenced in RAP 1.2(a), governs motions for extension of time to file a petition for review and states:

> "The appellate court will <u>only in extraordinary circumstances</u> and to prevent a gross miscarriage of justice <u>extend the time within</u> <u>which a party must file a notice of appeal</u>, a notice of discretionary review, a motion for discretionary review of a decision of the Court of Appeals, <u>a petition for review</u>, or a motion for reconsideration. <u>The appellate court will ordinarily hold that the</u> <u>desirability of finality of decisions outweighs the privilege of a</u> <u>litigant to obtain an extension of time under this section</u>..." (<u>Emphasis</u>, added.)

Therefore, this Court will only grant an extension of time to file a petition for review in the rare case where "extraordinary circumstances" exist. Extraordinary circumstances include situations where the filing, despite reasonable diligence, was defective due to excusable error or circumstances beyond the party's control. <u>Shumway v. Payne</u>, 136 Wn.2d 383, 395, 964 P.2d 349 (1998).

This standard "has rarely been satisfied in reported case law since the effective date of the Rules of Appellate Procedure on July 1, 1976." <u>Reichelt v. Raymark Indus,</u> 52 Wn. App. 763, 765 (1988). In Reichelt, the Court found that setting the high bar for granting extensions only when extraordinary circumstances exists "clearly favors the policy of finality of judicial decisions over the competing policy of reaching the merits in every case." <u>Reichelt, 52</u> Wn. App. at 765.

This Court has consistently denied motion for extensions where a party does not exercise reasonable diligence, does not claim confusion about the method for seeking review, does not claim excusable error in interpreting the rules, and does not claim the delay was due to circumstances beyond the party's control. <u>Shumway</u>, 136 Wn.2d at 396.

Local 839 relies heavily on <u>Scannell v State</u> in support of its Motion for an Extension as it is one of the few cases where a motion for an extension of time was granted. However, there are no similarities whatsoever between this case and <u>Scannell</u>. In <u>Scannell</u>, the petitioner was a pro se litigant and was confused over a recent change in court rules. The <u>Scannell</u> Court ruled he had exercised reasonable diligence in following the rules that he thought applied; therefore, granted the extension. <u>Scannell v. State</u>, 128 Wn.2d 829, 834-35 (1996).

Unlike the litigant in <u>Scannell</u>, Local 839 is represented by an attorney and there was no confusion of any court rule. In its Motion for Extension, Local 839 states that it failed to file the Petition for Review timely because an employee had quit the firm approximately 2 months before the due date of the petition, an employee went on sick leave two days before the petition was due; and, its log-in password had expired so they couldn't E-file the petition and by the time they reset the password they had missed the filing deadline. Local 839's reasons for missing the deadline to file its petition are merely based on ordinary, everyday internal administerial issues that every law firm deals with and are certainly not extraordinary.

Courts have universally denied similar motions for extensions. In <u>State v. Beckman</u> the Court denied a motion for an extension of time when an internal lack of calendaring procedure resulted in a late filing of a notice of appeal. <u>State v, Beckman</u> 102 Wn. App. 687, 695 (2000). In <u>Reichelt</u>, the court did not find extraordinary circumstances where one of the appellant's attorneys left the firm during the 30-day period after the entry of judgement and the firm's other appellant attorney had a large caseload. <u>Reichelt</u>, 52 Wn. App. at 764-65.

Local 839 has not provided any extraordinary circumstances that were beyond its control that would justify its failure to file the petition for review within the required timelines.

2. Local 839 did not exercise reasonable diligence in filing the petition

As stated previously, an extension of time to file a petition for review will not be granted if a party fails to follow reasonable diligence in meeting the deadline to file the petition. Local 839 clearly did not exercise reasonable diligence in filing its petition after the deadline. Pursuant to RAP 13.4(b), Local 839 had 30 days after the decision to terminate review is filed. Therefore, Local 839 had until 5:00 pm on May 19, 2022 to file a petition for review (Appendix A). At 5:26 pm on May 19, 2022, Local 839 filed a short ten-page petition that was merely a duplication of the unsuccessful arguments it submitted to Benton County Superior Court and in the Division III Court of Appeals. Local 839 had 30 days to file the Petition for Review and made a conscious decision to wait until the eleventh hour to file the petition. Had Local 839 exercised reasonable diligence and not waited to file the petition until 30 minutes before the petition was due, Local 839 would have had plenty of time to reset its log-in password. Furthermore, Washington courts notify attorneys and law firms when their E-file log-in passwords will be expiring soon. Reasonable diligence requires resetting the password before the password expires, not literally minutes before a petition is due.

By waiting until the last minute to file its petition and not resetting its log-in password before letting it expire, Local 839 clearly did not exercise reasonable diligence in filing its Petition for Review.

Since Local 839 has shown no extraordinary circumstances that prevented it from filing its Petition for Review before the deadline to file, and Local 839 did not exercise reasonable diligence in filing the petition before the deadline, its Motion for Extension should be denied.

B. The Court of Appeals Correctly Applied Precedential Decisions

The Court should not consider Local 839's Petition for Review as Local 839 failed to timey file its petition without good cause. However, assuming arguendo that the Court grants Local 839's Motion for Extension to file its Petition for Review, the Court should not accept review of this case as the court of appeals correctly followed this Court's decisions when it affirmed the superior court's decision to vacate the arbitration award.

RAP 13.4(b) outlines the specifical circumstances when this Court will accept a petition for review:

- If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Local 839 bases its Petition for Review on RAP 13.4(b)(1), arguing that the court of appeals decision conflict's with this Court's and other court of appeals' prior decisions. Local 839's argument is without merit.

Washington courts have made it crystal clear that Washington courts have an obligation to vacate an arbitrator's decision when an arbitrator has exceeded his or her legal authority. <u>Clark County Pub. Util.</u> <u>Dist. No. 1 v. Int'l Bhd. of Elec. Workers, Local 125</u>, 150 Wash.2d 237, 245 (Wash. 2003). An arbitrator exceeds his or her legal authority when their decision violates an "explicit," "well defined," and "dominant" public policy. <u>International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 286 v.</u> <u>Vivenzio, 176 Wn.2d 712, 721 (Wash. 2013); Kitsap County Sheriff's</u> <u>Deputy Guild v. Kitsap County</u>, 167 Wn.2d. 428, 436 (Wash. 2009). Washington's law against workplace discrimination and harassment, RCW 49.60, The Washington Law Against Discrimination ("WLAD"), sets forth an explicit, well-defined, and dominant public policy. <u>International</u> <u>Union of Operating Engineers, Local 286</u>, 176 Wn.2d 712, 721 (Wash. 2013); <u>Kitsap County Sheriff's Guild v. Kitsap County and Kitsap County</u> <u>Sheriff's</u>, 167 Wn.2d 428, 434 (Wash. 2009). The WLAD contains a "clear mandate to eliminate all forms of discrimination" and the "purpose of the law is 'to deter and to eradicate discrimination in Washington." <u>International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 286 at Id</u>.

In applying the above-cited decisions, the court of appeals gave three reasons for unanimously affirming Benton County Superior Court vacating the Award:

> "There are three lines of reasoning in the arbitrator's awards that we conclude violate the express, well defined, dominant public policies to end and prevent discrimination in places of public accommodation by officials acting under color of state law.

The first is the position taken by the award that since the investigation began as one into Ms. Hart's allegations, for the Department to follow up when it learned that other women in the community had complaints was unfair to Mr. Hellyer, and not an evenhanded application of work rules. One of the well-defined public policies found by Stroehmann was a "public policy favoring voluntary employer prevention and application of sanctions against sexual harassment in the workplace," a public policy that it applied in the context of harassment of a customer, not a coworker. 969 F.2d at 1442. As earlier observed, for a municipality to fail to take remedial action upon learning of a police officer's misconduct can subject it to liability in a civil rights suit based on its deliberate indifference. The Department would have been remiss had it ignored information that Teresa, Brandi, and Ms. Schutt complained of sexual harassment by Officer Hellyer.

The second is the position taken by the award that what would otherwise be a police officer's sexual harassment of a female citizen can be "neutralized" by the following evidence: if pictures of women in intimate attire are shown not only to her, but to her husband; if her husband thanks a police officer for checking on his wife's business; if she tries to maintain a cordial relationship with the police officers on her town's small police force; or if she has moved out of town.

The third is that for a police officer to repeatedly talk to female citizens in their workplace about his sex life, his and his wife's sexual aids, his perception that the citizen does not wear enough clothing, and to engage in sexual innuendo, is the kind of "coarse conversation" that she should expect in her workplace. This case does not involve harassment by a coworker, and as previously observed, the Washington Supreme Court has held that a claim by a plaintiff who is served rather than employed by the defendant "is more of a consumer claim than a claim between an employee and employer, and [such a] claim is not limited by the employment discrimination statute." Floeting, 192 Wn.2d at 855." (Appendix B, p. 20-22)

The court of appeals finding that the arbitration award violated Washington's expressed, "well defined, dominant public policies to end and prevent discrimination in places of public accommodation by officials acting under color of state law" is well-reasoned and certainly fall squarely within the stare decisis set forth by this and other court decisions.

As it did in Benton County Superior Court and before the Court of Appeals Division III, Local 839 continues to conflate the role of the arbitrator with the role of the court. Benton County Superior Court and the Division III Court of Appeals followed the decisions set forth by this Court mandating that courts vacate an arbitrator's decision when an arbitrator has exceeded his or her legal authority by violating a dominate public policy such as the policy to prevent and end sexual harassment. In sum, this issue is not appropriate for review, because Local 839 have not identified any actual conflict between the court of appeals decision and this Court's precedent.

V. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

Local 839 motion to extend the time for submitting a petition for review should be denied, because it failed file its petition within the RAP 13(4)(a)'s deadline and its failure to timely file the petition was due to its lack of exercising reasonable diligence, not based any extraordinary circumstances beyond Local 839;s control.

If Local 839's Motion to Extend the timeline to file the petition is granted its Petition for Review should be denied because the court of appeals decision does not conflict with this Court's prior decisions.

Respectfully Submitted,

DATED this 23rd day of June, 2022.

0

Lance King, WSBA #30473 Attorney for Respondent City of Prosser 21817 14th Avenue South Des Moines, WA 98198 Ph: (206) 375-9644 Email: lking@lancekinglaw.com APPENDIX A

ERIN L. LENNON SUPREME COURT CLERK

SARAH R. PENDLETON DEPUTY CLERK/ CHIEF STAFF ATTORNEY

THE SUPREME COURT

STATE OF WASHINGTON



TEMPLE OF JUSTICE P.O. BOX 40929 OLYMPIA, WA 98504-0929

(360) 357-2077 e-mail: supreme@courts.wa.gov www.courts.wa.gov

May 20, 2022

LETTER SENT BY E-MAIL ONLY

David W. Ballew Reid McCarthy Ballew & Leahy LLP 100 West Harrison Street, Suite N300 Seattle, WA 98119-4143

Hon. Tristen Worthen, Clerk Court of Appeals, Division III 500 North Cedar Street Spokane, WA 99201

Lance C. King Attorney At Law 19803 1st Avenue South, Suite 200 Normandy Park, WA 98148-2410

Re: Supreme Court No. 100945-3 – City of Prosser v. Teamsters Union Local 839, et al. Court of Appeals No. 37889-6-III

Clerk and Counsel:

The Court of Appeals has forwarded the "PETITION FOR REVIEW" in the above referenced matter. The matter has been assigned the Supreme Court cause number indicated above.

The Court of Appeals decision terminating review in this case was filed on April 19, 2022. RAP 13.4(a) requires the filing of a petition for review within 30 days after a decision terminating review is filed. GR 30(c) provides that an electronic document is filed when it is received during the clerk's business hours, otherwise the document is considered filed at the beginning of the next business day. In this case, the petition for review was due by 5:00 p.m. on May 19, 2022. The petition for review was filed at 5:26 p.m. on May 19, 2022. Under GR 30(c), the filing is considered filed on May 20, 2022, and therefore, it is untimely.

The Petitioner may seek an extension of time in which to file the petition for review by filing a motion for extension of time to file a petition for review. Any such motion should be served and filed in this Court by May 27, 2022. The motion should be supported by an appropriate affidavit establishing good cause for the delay in filing the petition for review; see RAP 18.8 for information on extension of time for filings and RAP Title 17 for the general rules governing motions. A motion for extension of time to file is normally not granted; see RAP 18.8(b).

Page 2 No. 100945-3 May 20, 2022

In addition, the \$200 filing fee did not accompany the petition. The filing fee should also be paid by May 27, 2022.

To continue with this case, by May 27, 2022, the \$200 filing fee must be paid and a motion for extension of time must be received by this Court. Otherwise, it is likely that this case will be dismissed.

Upon receipt of the filing fee and the motion for extension of time, due dates will be set for filing any answer to the petition for review and the motion for extension of time.

Counsel are referred to the provisions of General Rule 31(e) regarding the requirement to omit certain personal identifiers from all documents filed in this court. This rule provides that parties "shall not include, and if present shall redact" social security numbers, financial account numbers and driver's license numbers. As indicated in the rule, the responsibility for redacting the personal identifiers rests solely with counsel and the parties. The Clerk's Office does not review documents for compliance with the rule. Because briefs and other documents in cases that are not sealed may be made available to the public on the court's internet website, or viewed in our office, it is imperative that such personal identifiers not be included in filed documents.

Counsel are advised that future correspondence from this Court regarding this matter will most likely only be sent by an e-mail attachment, not by regular mail. For attorneys, this office uses the e-mail address that appears on the Washington State Bar Association lawyer directory. Counsel are responsible for maintaining a current businessrelated e-mail address in that directory.

Sincerely,

P

Signed by docket clerk for: Erin L. Lennon Supreme Court Clerk

DRC:jm